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(b)(6) state.gov>; Feith, David (D)(B) astate.gov>

Subject: Re: Gain of function—from Ford

This sounds like "we need prove beyond any doubt, reasonable or not."
Jeff Gibbs

Senior Adviser AVC
SSD/AVC

c[(B)(®)

From: Asher, David {(0)(6) [@state.gov>

Sent: Friday, December 4, 2020 11:25 AM

To: DiNanno, Thomas G {(B)(6) ajstate.gov>
: Gi offrey J{(0)(6) _ [@state.eov>; Pease, Michael (b)(6) state.cov>: (b)(6)

(b)(6) (@state.gov>;((D)(6) listate.gov>; Feith, David [(b)(6) [@state gov>
Subject: Fw: Gain of function—from Ford '

From: Ford, Christopher A [D)(6) Dstate.gov>
Sent: Friday, December 4, 2020 10:36 AM

To: Asher, David |(b)(6) |@state.gov>

Subject: Re: Gain of function

Dear David:

Sorry for being slow in replying, but I'm out of town and wanted to do your comment justice. |
appreciate the message, and for for taking the time to put together yesterday's briefing (though
| was a little surprised to hear that AVC had been working for so long on this project without
them telling me anything about it). As|told Tom in an earlier message, | was impressed by the
depth and detail of the presentation, and very much want to make sure we get this issue right.
Anyway, | look forward to continuing the conversation to assess the strength of the argument
and especially to engaging others whose technical knowledge exceeds my own. On the points
you raised, however — and after sniffing around at least a bit —- let me offer some tentative
thoughts in response to the points you raised:

| wonder whether you misremember or misunderstood Chris’ comment. As | understand it, Dr.
Andersen did not see a natural origin for SARS-COV-2 as “obvious.” In fact, I'm told thatin a
briefing organized by INR earlier this year, he said that several features that had initially raised
questions in his mind were subsequently put to rest by more detailed analysis. Notably, it was
that subsequent follow-on analysis, referred to by Anderson in the INR discussion, about which
Chris was asking yesterday. (Citing only Anderson’s initial concerns, therefore, doesn’t answer
the question.)

| should also point out that, as | understand it, Dr. Andersen’s 2018 Nature article does not
exactly trash {or even directly address} so-called GOF research writ farge. His criticism was
aimed specifically at efforts to predict future zoonotic disease emergence — a subset of which
includes such research, | guess — which he characterized as an ineffective use of resources that
could be better spent strengthening human disease surveillance. That doesn’t sound like a per
se rejection of GOF research.

You inquired whether GOF research into pathogens is common. | don’t myself know this field,
but I am advised that experiments that alter the host range, pathogenicity, infectivity, and
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other traits of pathogens does occur with some regularity in laboratories having suitable
biosafety levels and oversight, including research into potential vaccine escape and the
development of animal models needed for countermeasure development. Numerous papers
based on such research have been published in major scientific journals.

As you point out, the potential risks of such research are very real, and also widely recognized.
I’'m told they were first examined in 2004 by the National Academies in a document commonly
referred to as the "Fink Report" and have been a recurrent focus of work by the National
Science Advisory Board on Biosecurity (NSABB} — which is itself a recommendation from the
report. |I’'m told the NSABB reports on this work are quite interesting. {Not sure if you’ve seen
them.) | believe the key point the ISN staffers at our meeting wanted to raise is that the mere
fact that such research took place is not in itself an indicator of nefarious activity, nor evidence
that this particular virus was generated at WIV. (None of this means that GOF isn’t risky, of
course, that it doesn’t deserve careful oversight, or that it cannot be used for malign purposes.
All those things seem to be true, and | frankly find the the topic deeply unsettling. But it
certainly doesn’t follow that simply engaging in GOF is evidence of BW — for which I’'m very
thankful, since such research seems to be quite common.}

The Department of State advocates systems of national oversight over, and careful risk-benefit
analysis of, dual-use research of concern and work with what are sometimes referred to as
Potentially Pandemic Pathogens. {We also rasie these issues on an ongoing basis in BWC
meetings.) If by "support" you mean "fund,"” then the answer is that the Department of State
does not fund any such research, although the United States government is on the whole, a
significant funder of GOF research.

Anyway, |'ve asked Tom to task a “next steps” paper on how we should move forward in
evaluating the argument and taking any appropriate follow-on steps, and I look forward to
engaging on it again soon. If you're right about this issue, of course, the implications are huge.
But it’s precisely because of those huge implications that we need to make very sure we
understand whether that’s the case.

(1 also want to talk about the Article V issue, which is a topic more in my usual swim lane as a
lawyer and former Verification and Compliance Bureau PDAS. | regret we didn’t get the chance
to address that topic in my office.)

So let’s continue this when I’'m back next week. (I return Tuesday morning.)

Thanks again,

— Chris

From: David Asherhudson.org>

Sent: Thursday, December 3, 2020 5:10 AM

To: Ford, Christopher A

Subject: Gain of function

Chris,

It is interesting that Chris Park quoted Dr. Andersen regarding the natural and apparently
“obvious™ zoonotic origin or COVID-19 —an increasingly debatable conclusion, including
based on the presentation I provided. His colleague then defended the proposition that gain of
function research is commonplace—included into pathogens? It is precisely this gain of function






10



11



12



